LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE

Date and Time:- Tuesday 19 August 2025 at 10.00 a.m.

Venue:- Rotherham Town Hall, The Crofts, Moorgate Street,
Rotherham. S60 2TH

Membership:- Councillors Hughes (Chair), Garnett and Jones.

The items which will be discussed are described on the agenda below and there are
reports attached which give more details.

Rotherham Council advocates openness and transparency as part of its democratic
processes.

Anyone wishing to record (film or audio) the public parts of the meeting should
inform the Chair or Governance Advisor of their intentions prior to the meeting.

AGENDA

1. To determine whether the following items should be considered under the
categories suggested in accordance with Part 1 of Schedule 12A (as
amended March 2006) of the Local Government Act 1972

2. To determine any item(s) which the Chair is of the opinion should be
considered later in the agenda as a matter of urgency

3. Consideration of an application (made in accordance with s.51 of the
Licensing Act 2003) for the review of the Premises Licence issued to
Hepworth Drive Off Licence Store Limited, Hepworth Drive Off Licence
Store, 22 Hepworth Drive, Aston, Sheffield S26 2BG (Pages 3 - 45)

Mo

JOHN EDWARDS,
Chief Executive.



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 3 Agenda Item 3

Hearing Procedure - Review

1. The Chairperson of the Licensing Sub Committee will introduce the
Committee and ask officers to introduce themselves.

2. The Chairperson of the Licensing Sub Committee will ask the following
parties to introduce themselves:

I the applicant (the Police) and any witnesses they wish to call.

. any person who has made representations and any witnesses they
wish to call.

ii. the licence holder, together with any person representing them and
any witnesses they wish to call.

3. The Licensing Officer will introduce the report and provide any updates.

i. Questions solely concerning the report can be asked by Members, the
applicant, persons making representations and the licence holder.

4. The Chairperson of the Licensing Sub Committee will then invite:

a. the applicant ( the Police) to present their application and call any
witnesses.

b. any person_who has made representations to present their
representations and call any witnesses.

c. thelicence holder to respond to the application, and representations,
and call any witness.

Questions - Members of the Sub Committee, followed by the applicant, any
person who has made representations, and the licence holder may ask
questions of all person’s listed in 4 above and any person who have given
evidence on their behalf as a withess.

5. The applicant (the Police) will then be given the opportunity to sum up
the application.

6. Thelicence holder will then be given the opportunity to sum up

7. The public hearing will then be concluded, and the Sub Committee will go into
closed session, together with the Councils Solicitor and the Clerk to the
meeting.

8. The decision of the Licensing Committee will be given in accordance with
the requirements of the Licensing Act 2003 and regulations made
thereunder.



Page 4

Note:

e At any time throughout the hearing Members of the Licensing Sub
Committee may request legal advice from the Council’'s Solicitor. Any
advice sought during closed session will be included in the notice setting
out the decision.

e The Committee Hearing will be held in public unless and in accordance with
relevant Regulations the Licensing Sub Committee determine that the
public should be excluded.




Page 5

Rotherham »
Metropolitan ‘
Borough Council
Public Report
Licensing Sub-Committee

Committee Name and Date of Committee Meeting
Licensing Sub-Committee — 19" August 2025 at 10:00 hours (10am)
Report Title

Consideration of an application (made in accordance with s.51 of the Licensing Act
2003) for the review of the Premises Licence issued to Hepworth Drive Off Licence
Store Limited, Hepworth Drive Off Licence Store, 22 Hepworth Drive, Aston, Sheffield
S26 2BG

Report Author

Diane Kraus, Principal Licensing Officer, Community Safety and Street Scene.
Telephone 01709 289536

Report Summary

On the 30" May 2025 an application was made by the Chief Constable of South
Yorkshire Police for the review of the Premises Licence issued to Hepworth Drive Off
Licence Store Limited in respect of Hepworth Drive Off Licence Store (previously
known as Comrades Convenience Store), 22 Hepworth Drive, Aston, Sheffield S26
2BG

The application seeks the revocation of the Premises Licence.

Representations in support of the application, and the recommendation that the
Premises Licence is revoked, have been received from Public Health, Rotherham
Safeguarding Children Partnership, and the Licensing Authority.

Further details on the application and the representations to it can be found within the
body of this report.

Recommendations

1. That the Licensing Sub-Committee considers the information contained within
this report (and associated appendices) along with any additional information
presented at the hearing and subsequently determines the application that has
been made.

2. The Licensing Sub-Committee should inform the Licensing Manager of the
decision in accordance with the requirements of the Licensing Act 2003 and
Regulations made thereunder.



Page 6

List of Appendices Included

Appendix 1 Premises Licence (P0932)

Appendix 2 Location Plan

Appendix 3 Application under consideration

Appendix 4 Representations in support of the Review Application.
Appendix 5 Additional evidence provided by South Yorkshire Police .

Background Papers

Rotherham MBC Statement of Licensing Policy 2020 -2025
(Available at www.rotherham.gov.uk/licensing)

Revised guidance issued under sec. 82 of the Licensing Act 2003, February 2025
(Available at https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-
revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003)

Council Approval Required

No

Exempt from the Press and Public

No


http://www.rotherham.gov.uk/licensing
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003

Page 7

Consideration of an application (made in accordance with s.51 of the Licensing
Act 2003) for the review of the Premises Licence issued to Hepworth Drive Off
Licence Store Limited in respect of the premises known as Hepworth Drive Off
Licence Store (previously known as Comrades Convenience Store), 22
Hepworth Drive, Aston, Sheffield S26 2BG

11

1.2

1.3

1.4

15

1.6

1.7

2.1

Background

The premises were first licensed by the Council under the Licensing Act 2003 in
March 2014. .

The Licence was transferred to the current holder, Hepworth Drive Off Licence
Store Limited, on 11th December 2018. A search of Company House records
show that Hepworth Drive Off Licence Store Limited was incorporated July 2018
at that Mr Thomas MANI PALATHU PARAMBIL was one of two director at this
time; and has been the sole director of the Company since July 2019 onwards.

On the 6" June 2025 the Licence holder made an application for a minor variation
of the Licence. This application sought to add the steps set out in the Police and
Licensing Enforcement joint action plan as management controls to the Annex 2
of the Licence. The minor variation application was granted on 17" June 2025.

An application to vary the Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) was made on
8t July 2025. This application sought to remove the existing DPS , who had been
named on the Licence as the DPS since its first grant in 2014, making Mr Thomas
MANI PALATHU PARAMBIL the DPS with immediate effect.

A copy of the current Premises Licence held Hepworth Drive Off Licence Store
Limited is attached at Appendix 1. This Licence authorises the sale of alcohol,
for consumption off the premises, on:
e each of the days Monday to Saturday between 7.30am and 8.30pm; and
e Sunday between 9.30am and 8.30pm.

The opening hours of the premises, as stated on the Premises Licence, match
the hours authorised for the sale of alcohol.

The Premises is subject to the mandatory licensing conditions and the offered
conditions set out in Annex 1 and 2 of the Premises Licence ( see Appendix 1)..

Key Issues

Location of the Premises

A location plan of the premises is attached at Appendix 2.



2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

Page 8

The application

On 30" May 2025 an application was made by the Chief Constable of South
Yorkshire Police to review the Premises,. A copy of this application is attached
at Appendix 3.

The application seeks the revocation of the Premises Licence on the grounds
that the Licence holder has failed to promote the licensing objectives of: :

e prevention of crime and disorder; and
e protection of children from harm.

A copy of the application was served on the Licence holder, Mr Sangar
Mohammad, by post and by email on the 26" October 2023. In addition, on the
same date, a copy was hand delivered to him at the premises.

The Licence holder, Mr Sangar Mohammad, has been made aware that a
possible outcome of the review is that the Sub Committee may decide to revoke
his Licence and advised to seek independent legal advice and support.

Consultation

Consultation on the application has been carried out on the application in
accordance with all statutory requirements and the Council’s procedure. There
is a prescribed period of 28 days following the submission of an application
during which time representations in relation to the application may be submitted.

At the end of the prescribed period, representations in support of the review
application have been lodged on behalf of three of the Responsible Authorities,
namely Public Health, Rotherham Safeguarding Children Partnership, and the
Licensing Authority.

Arrangements were made for the application to be heard by the Sub-Committee
on 30t July 2025. This date was within the 20 working day deadline prescribed
by licensing regulations. However, the day immediately before the hearing date
the Licence holders representative withdrew. Given this, South Yorkshire Police
were asked, and agreed, for an extension of time to allow the Licence holder to
secure alterative representation.

The applicant, Licence Holder and Responsible Authorities have been invited to
the hearing today. All parties attending, will be given the opportunity to address
the Sub-Committee in relation to the matters raised in the application and the
representations to it.



2.10

2.11

2.12

Page 9

The Licence holder has been informed that unless there is good reason not to,
the Sub- Committee, may decide to consider the application in their absence.

Members of the Sub-Committee should give full consideration of the issues
raised in the application and the representations, the Licence holders response
to the application and representations, together any supporting evidence
provided by any party prior to the date of the hearing. Documentary evidence
provided on the day of the hearing should only be considered with the consent
of all parties.

Representation from the Responsible Authorities

Representations in support of the review application have been submitted by
Public Health, Rotherham Safeguarding Children Partnership, and the Licensing
Authority. A copy of the representations, which all support the recommendation
that the Premises Licence is revoked, are attached at Appendix 4.

Additional Evidence

2.13 South Yorkshire Police have provided additional evidence in support of their

application, a copy of which is attached at Appendix 5.

2.14 Any additional evidence supplied prior to the hearing date will be circulated to

3.1

3.2

3.3

the Sub Committee and all relevant parties. Additional evidence supplied on the
day of the hearing may only be considered by the Sub Committee with the
consent of all parties.

Options available to the Licensing Sub-Committee

A Licensing Authority must carry out its functions under the Licensing Act with a
view to promoting the licensing objectives:

o the prevention of crime and disorder
o public safety

o the prevention of public nuisance

o the protection of children from harm

In considering this matter, the Sub Committee should take into account any
representations or objections that have been received from responsible
authorities or other persons, together with any representations made by the
Licence holder. In reaching the decision, regard must also be had to relevant
provisions of the national guidance and the Council’s licensing policy statement.

In relation to this application, the options available to the Committee are to:



3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

Page 10

¢ modify the conditions of the premises licence (which includes adding
new conditions or any alteration or omission of an existing condition);

e exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence;

e remove the designated premises supervisor;

e suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months;

e revoke the licence.

The Sub Committee may decide that the review does not require it to take any
further steps appropriate to promoting the licensing objectives. In addition, there
is nothing to prevent the Sub Committee from issuing an informal warning to the
Licence holder and/or to recommend improvement within a particular period of
time. Such informal warnings are regarded as an important mechanism for
ensuring that the licensing objectives are effectively promoted, and any such
warnings should be issued in writing to the Licence holder.

However, where responsible authorities such as the Police or Environmental
Health Officers have already issued warnings requiring improvement — either
orally or in writing — that have failed as part of their own stepped approach to
address concerns, the Sub Committee should not merely repeat that approach
and should take this into account when considering what further action is
appropriate. Similarly, Sub Committee may take into account any civil
immigration penalties which a licence holder has been required to pay for
employing an illegal worker.

In deciding which of these powers to invoke, it is expected that Sub Committee
should so far as possible seek to establish the cause or causes of the concerns
that the representations identify. The remedial action taken should generally be
directed at these causes and should always be no more than an appropriate and
proportionate response to address the causes of concern that instigated the
review.

For example, the Sub Committee should be alive to the possibility that the
removal and replacement of the designated premises supervisor may be
sufficient to remedy a problem where the cause of the identified problem directly
relates to poor management decisions made by that individual.

Equally, it may emerge that poor management is a direct reflection of poor
company practice or policy, and the mere removal of the designated premises
supervisor may be an inadequate response to the problems presented. Indeed,
where subsequent review hearings are generated by representations, it should
be rare merely to remove a succession of designated premises supervisors as
this would be a clear indication of deeper problems that impact upon the licensing
objectives.

The Sub Committee should also note that modifications of conditions and
exclusions of authorised activities may be imposed either permanently or for a
temporary period of up to three months. Temporary changes or suspension of



3.10

3.11

4.1

4.2

4.3

5.1

Page 11

the Licence for up to three months could have a financial impact and would only
be expected to be pursued as an appropriate means of promoting the licensing
objectives or preventing illegal working. So, for instance, a Licence could be
suspended for a weekend as a means of deterring the holder from allowing the
problems that gave rise to the review to happen again. However, it will always
be important that any detrimental financial impact that may result from the Sub
Committees decision is appropriate and proportionate to the promotion of the
licensing objectives and for the prevention of illegal working. But where premises
are found to be trading irresponsibly, the licensing authority should not hesitate,
where appropriate to do so, to take tough action to tackle the problems at the
premises and, where other measures are deemed insufficient, to revoke the
certificate.

All licensing determinations should be considered on the individual merits of the
application. The Sub |Committees determination should be evidence-based,
justified as being appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives and
proportionate to what it is intended to achieve. Findings on any issues of fact
should be on the balance of probability.

It is important that the Sub Committee give comprehensive reasons for its
decisions in anticipation of any appeals. Failure to give adequate reasons could
itself give rise to grounds for an appeal.

Timetable and Accountability for Implementing this Decision
Any decision made by the Licensing Sub-Committee does not have effect until:

o the end of the period given for appealing against the decision; or
o if the decision is appealed, until the appeal is disposed of.

An appeal may be lodged by either the applicant, Licence holder or a party to
the hearing that has made a relevant representation.

Parties to the hearing must be informed of the decision within 5 working days of
the hearing (or within 5 working days from the last day of the hearing if it takes
place over multiple days).

Financial Implications

There are no specific financial implications arising from this application.
However, additional costs may be incurred should the matter go to appeal. In
such an eventuality it may not be possible to recover all of the costs incurred.
The impact of these additional costs (if any) will therefore need to be met from
within existing revenue budgets.



6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

Page 12

Legal Advice and Implications

A Council Solicitor will be in attendance at the hearing to provide appropriate
legal advice to the Licensing Sub-Committee in relation to specific aspects of the
application / hearing, however the advice below is generally applicable to all
applications.

Hearings under the Licensing Act 2003 operate under the Licensing Act 2003
(Hearings) Regulations 2005 (as amended).

In accordance with Regulation 18 of the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings)
Regulations 2005, the authority may take into account documentary or other
information produced by a party in support of their application, representations
or notice either before the hearing or, with the consent of all parties, at the
hearing.

The Sub Committee may accept hearsay evidence and it will be a matter for the
Licensing Sub-Committee to attach what weight to it that they consider
appropriate. Hearsay evidence is evidence of something that a witness neither
saw nor heard but has heard or read about.

The Secretary of State’s guidance to the Licensing Act 2003 is provided to
licensing authorities in relation to the carrying out of their functions under the
2003 Act. It also provides information to magistrates’ courts hearing appeals
against licensing decisions and has been made widely available for the benefit
of those who run licensed premises, their legal advisers and the general public.
It is a key medium for promoting best practice, ensuring consistent application of
licensing powers across England and Wales and for promoting fairness, equal
treatment, and proportionality.

Section 4 of the 2003 Act provides that, in carrying out its functions, a licensing
authority must ‘have regard to’ guidance issued by the Secretary of State under
section 182. The guidance is therefore binding on all licensing authorities to that
extent. However, the guidance cannot anticipate every possible scenario or set
of circumstances that may arise and, as long as licensing authorities have
properly understood this guidance, they may depart from it if they have good
reason to do so and can provide full reasons.

In addition to the above, members are reminded that all decisions must be taken
in accordance with the Council’'s Statement of Licensing Policy (adopted 3™ June
2020).



6.8

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

Page 13

Departure from the guidance and / or Statement of Licensing Policy could give
rise to an appeal or judicial review, and the reasons given will then be a key
consideration for the courts when considering the lawfulness and merits of any
decision taken.

Risks and Mitigation

The statutory requirements in relation to the consideration of this application are
detailed in this report. It is essential that the Sub-Committee act in accordance
with these statutory provisions and take account of statutory guidance.

Failure to do this exposes the Council to significant risk of legal challenge, the
consequences of which could result in financial and / or reputational damage to
the Council.

Members are therefore urged to fully consider the information in this report when
making a decision regarding this application, and to ensure that any decision
made is justifiable, proportionate, and based on the promotion of one or more of
the Licensing Obijectives.

Council officers are present at the meeting today and can provide additional
advice to members of the Sub-Committee should this be required. In addition, a
copy of the statutory guidance and Statement of Licensing Policy is available for
members to review should they wish to do so.

Accountable Officer(s)

Diane Kraus , Principal Licensing Officer, Policy & Administration

This report is published on the Council's website.



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 15
APPENDIX 1

Rotherham n)

Metropolitan ‘
Borough Council

Licensing Act 2003
Premises Licence

Part 1 - Premises Detalls

POSTAL ADDRESS OF PREMISES, OR IF NONE, ORDNANCE SURVEY MAP REFERENCE OR DESCRIPTION

Hepworth Drive Off Licence Store
22 Hepworth Drive, Aston, Sheffield, South Yorkshire, S26 2BG. Telephone 0114 3275256

WHERE THE LICENCE IS TIME LIMITED THE DATES
Not applicable

LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES AUTHORISED BY THE LICENCE
- the sale by retail of alcohol

THE TIMES THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE CARRYING OUT OF LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES

Activity (and Area if applicable) Description Time From Time To
The sale by retail of alcohol for consumption OFF the premises only
Monday to Saturday 7:30am 8:30pm
Sunday 9:30am 8:30pm

THE OPENING HOURS OF THE PREMISES

Description Time From Time To
Monday to Saturday 7:30am 8:30pm
Sunday 9:30am 8:30pm

WHERE THE LICENCE AUTHORISES SUPPLIES OF ALCOHOL WHETHER THESE ARE ON AND / OR OFF SUPPLIES

- The sale by retail of alcohol for consumption OFF the premises only

Part 2

NAME, (REGISTERED) ADDRESS, TELEPHONE NUMBER AND EMAIL (WHERE RELEVANT) OF HOLDER OF PREMISES LICENCE

Hepworth Drive Off Licence Store Limited Company 22 Hepworth Drive, Sheffield, South Yokshire, S26 2BG.
Telephone 07838480029

REGISTERED NUMBER OF HOLDER, FOR EXAMPLE COMPANY NUMBER, CHARITY NUMBER (WHERE APPLICABLE)

Hepworth Drive Off Licence Store Limited Company 11467574

NAME, ADDRESS AND TELEPHONE NUMBER OF DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR WHERE THE PREMISES LICENCE

AUTHORISES THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

Thomas Mani Palathu PARAMBIL 22 Orchid Cresent, Sheffield, S5 6GL.

Printed by LalPac on 10 Jul 2025 at 15:12 ||I|"| |"| |"""|| || |||||M"||mmummummary P0932/54718  Page 1 of 9



Page 16

APPERBET T Rotherham »

Metropolitan ‘
Borough Council

Licensing Act 2003
Premises Licence

PERSONAL LICENCE NUMBER AND ISSUING AUTHORITY OF PERSONAL LICENCE HELD BY DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR
WHERE THE PREMISES LICENCE AUTHORISES FOR THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

Licence No. SY07324PER Issued by Sheffield

i : f9
Printed by LalPac on 10 Jul 2025 at 15:12 ||I|"| |"| |"""|| || |||||M"||mmummummary P0932/54718  Page 20



Page 17
APPENDIX 1

Rotherham n)

Metropolitan ‘
Borough Council

Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence

ANNEXES

Annex 1 Mandatory Conditions

Mandatory conditions where licence authorises supply of alcohol

The licence is granted subject to the Mandatory conditions for sale of alcohol as set out in the Licensing
Act 2003 as amended by the Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory Licensing Conditions) Order 2010 and
Order 2014.

1. No supply of alcohol may be made under the Premises Licence -

(@) Atatime when there is no Designated Premises Supervisor in respect of the Premises Licence;
or

(b) At atime when the Designated Premises Supervisor does not hold a Personal Licence or his
Personal Licence is suspended.

2. Every supply of alcohol under the Premises Licence must be made, or authorised by a person who
holds a Personal Licence.

3. (1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, arrange or
participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.

(2) Inthis paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following activities,
or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of
alcohol for consumption on the premises.

a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or
encourage, individuals to -

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied
on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person is
authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or

(i) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);

b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted fee
to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which carries a
significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

¢) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward
the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner
which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the

Printed by LalPac on 10 Jul 2025 at 15:12 ||I|"| |"| |"""|| || |||||M"||mmummummary P0932/54718  Page 3 of 9




Page 18

apPENDIX 1 Rotherham n)

Metropolitan ‘
Borough Council

Licensing Act 2003
Premises Licence

ANNEXES continued ...

vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or

glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable
manner.

e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where that
other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability).

4. The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to customers
where it is reasonably available.

5. 1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age
verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.

2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licences must ensure that
the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy.

3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18
years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before
being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either:-

(a) a holographic mark or
(b) an ultraviolet feature.

6. The responsible person shall ensure that -

(@) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises
(other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or
supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the following measures -

(i) beer or cider: ¥z pint;
(i) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and
(i) still wine in a glass: 125 ml; and

(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is available
to customers on the premises; and

(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol to be
sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available.

Minimum Drinks Pricing

Printed by LalPac on 10 Jul 2025 at 15:12 ||I|"| |"| |"""|| || |||||M"||mmummummary P0932/54718  Page 4 of 9




Page 19

APPENDIX 1 Rotherham .)

Metropolitan ‘
Borough Council

Licensing Act 2003
Premises Licence

ANNEXES continued ...

1. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the
premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.

2. For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1 -
(a) “duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979
(b) “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula -
P =D + (DxV)
Where -
(i) P is the permitted price

(i) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on
the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and

(i) Vs the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added
tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;

(c) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a premises
licence -

0] The holder of the premises licence
(i) The designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or

(i) The personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a
licence;

(d) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club
premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity
which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and

(e) “value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax Act
1994.

3. Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from the
paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be
taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.

4. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph
2 on a day (“the first day”) would be different from the permitted price on the next day (“the
second day”) as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax.

Printed by LalPac on 10 Jul 2025 at 15:12 ||I|"| |"| |"""|| || |||||M"||mmummummary P0932/54718  Page 5 of 9




Page 20

APPERDIXT Rotherham n)

Metropolitan ‘
Borough Council

Licensing Act 2003
Premises Licence

ANNEXES continued ...
(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of
alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second
day.

If the Premises Licence has conditions in respect of Door Supervision
[except theatres, cinemas, bingo halls and casinos]

1. Where a premises licence includes a condition that at specified times one or more individuals must
be at the premises to carry out a security activity, each such individual must:

(a) be authorised to carry out that activity by a licence granted under the Private Security Industry Act
2001, or

(b) be entitled to carry out that activity by virtue of section 4 of the Act.
2. But nothing in subsection (1) requires such a condition to be imposed:

(a) in respect of premises within paragraph 8(3)(a) of Schedule 2 to the Private Security Industry Act
2001 (c12) (premises with premises licences authorising plays or films); or

(b) in respect of premises in relation to:

(i) any occasion mentioned in paragraph 8(3)(b) or (c) of that Schedule (premises being used
exclusively by club with club premises certificate, under a temporary event notice authorising
plays or films or under a gaming licence), or

(i) any occasion within paragraph 8(3)(d) of that Schedule (occasions prescribed by regulations

under that Act.
3. For the purposes of this section:
(a) “security activity” means an activity to which paragraph 2(1)(a) of that Schedule applies, and,

which is licensable conduct for the purposes of that Act, (see Section 3(2) of that Act) and

(b) paragraph 8(5) of that Schedule (interpretation of references to an occasion) applies as it applies
in relation to paragraph 8 of that Schedule.

Annex 2 Conditions consistent with operating schedule
1. A Challenge 25 Policy shall be in operation at the premises. This Policy shall require any person

who appears to be under the age of 25 to provide ID prior to being served alcohol. Acceptable
forms of ID are a:
a. Passport;

Printed by LalPac on 10 Jul 2025 at 15:12 ||I|"| |"| |"""|| || |||||M"||mmummummary P0932/54718  Page 6 of 9




Page 21
APPENDIX 1

Rotherham n)

Metropolitan ‘
Borough Council

Licensing Act 2003
Premises Licence

ANNEXES continued ...

b. UK photo driving licence; or
c. military ID card.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Staff shall log all refusals and challenges made under the Challenge 25 Policy in a bound book.
This log must show:

a. the date the refusal/challenge is made;

b. the name of the member of staff who made the refusal/challenge; and

c. Iif refused, whether fake ID was seized.

The DPS shall check the Challenge 25 log at least once a week, and sign and date each check.

The Challenge 25 log shall be kept on the premises and shall be available for inspection upon
request of the Police or an authorised officer of the Licensing Authority.

Signs shall be displayed inside the premises that advertise that the premises operates “Challenge
25",

A bound incident book shall be maintained, in which the following shall be recorded:
a. Allincidents of crime and disorder occurring at the premises; and
b. Details of when the Police are called.

The incident book shall be kept on the premises and shall be available for inspection upon
request by the Police or an authorised officer of the Licensing Authority.

The DPS shall check the incident book at least once a week, and sign and date each check.

The CCTV system installed at the premises shall:
a. be maintained fully at all times;
b. make and retain clear images; and
c. show an accurate date and time that the images were made.

All CCTV images shall be retained for a period of not less than 31 days.

CCTV images shall be immediately made available for review upon request of the Police or an
authorised officer of the Licensing Authority.

A copy of a CCTV image shall be provided within 24 hours upon request of the Police or an
authorised officer of the Licensing Authority.

A record of each member of staff who is authorised to sell alcohol shall be kept on the premises.
This record shall include the staff members full name, address, and date of birth.

Printed by LalPac on 10 Jul 2025 at 15:12 ||I|"| |"| |"""|| || |||||M"||mmummummary P0932/54718  Page 7 of 9



Page 22
APPENDIX 1

Rotherham n)

Metropolitan ‘
Borough Council

Licensing Act 2003
Premises Licence

ANNEXES continued ...
14. All staff shall receive training on induction, and year thereafter, on:

a. operation of 'Challenge 25';

types of acceptable ID;

method of recording refusals;

refusing sales of alcohol to persons who appear to be drunk;

preventing proxy sales; and

how to review the CCTV system if requested.

~pooyT

15. Staff training shall be recorded, and this record shall be kept of the premises and shall, on
request, be made available for inspection by the Police or an authorised officer of the Licensing
Authority.

16. The licence holder shall fit an intruder alarm at the premises.

17. The licence holder shall store excess stock away from the customer area.

18. The licence holder shall ensure that lighting is installed around the exterior of the premises.

19. The licence holder shall ensure that steps are taken to stop noise nuisance, light pollution and
litter.

20. The licence holder shall ensure that there are two bins kept on site.

Annex 3 Conditions attached after a Hearing of Licensing Authority
None.
Annex 4 Plans

Printed by LalPac on 10 Jul 2025 at 15:12 ||I|"| |"| |"""|| || ||||| |||I"I|”I4H|M"1mary P0932/54718  Page 8 of 9



Page 23

APPERDXT " Rotherham n)

Metropolitan ‘
Borough Council

Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence Summary P0932

Premises Details

POSTAL ADDRESS OF PREMISES, OR IF NONE, ORDNANCE SURVEY MAP REFERENCE OR DESCRIPTION

Hepworth Drive Off Licence Store
22 Hepworth Drive, Aston, Sheffield, South Yorkshire, S26 2BG. Telephone 0114 3275256

WHERE THE LICENCE IS TIME LIMITED THE DATES

Not applicable

LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES AUTHORISED BY THE LICENCE
- the sale by retail of alcohol

THE TIMES THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE CARRYING OUT OF LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES

Activity (and Area if applicable) Description Time From Time To
The sale by retail of alcohol for consumption OFF the premises only
Monday to Saturday 7:30am 8:30pm
Sunday 9:30am 8:30pm

THE OPENING HOURS OF THE PREMISES

Description Time From Time To
Monday to Saturday 7:30am 8:30pm
Sunday 9:30am 8:30pm

WHERE THE LICENCE AUTHORISES SUPPLIES OF ALCOHOL WHETHER THESE ARE ON AND / OR OFF SUPPLIES
- The sale by retail of alcohol for consumption OFF the premises only

NAME, (REGISTERED) ADDRESS OF HOLDER OF PREMISES LICENCE

Hepworth Drive Off Licence Store Limited Company 22 Hepworth Drive, Sheffield, South Yokshire, S26 2BG.

REGISTERED NUMBER OF HOLDER, FOR EXAMPLE COMPANY NUMBER, CHARITY NUMBER (WHERE APPLICABLE)

Hepworth Drive Off Licence Store Limited Company 11467574

NAME OF DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR WHERE THE PREMISES LICENCE AUTHORISES THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

Thomas Mani Palathu PARAMBIL

STATE WHETHER ACCESS TO THE PREMISES BY CHILDREN IS RESTRICTED OR PROHIBITED

Printed by LalPac on 10 Jul 2025 at 15:12 ||I|"| |"| |"""|| || ||||| |||I"I|mm|uuu1mary P0932/54718  Page 9 of 9



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 25
APPENDIX 2

Vo

é? ' g Comrade %

O Convenience Store %"G

= Convenience Store

g %% z
oe‘, : @

I‘/e
) Rob Bates Ink Surgery
9@

; Tattoo Studio Sheffielc
Chic Beauty o > Tatioashot

08

Amazon Counter - o
Hepworth Drive Off... =

DS Digital Print o
Ltd - Photocopier &... 5=

O

comrade
Convenience,Store!

x




Page 26
APPENDIX 2




Page 27
APPENDIX 3

[Insert name and address of relevant licensing authority and its reference number (optional)]

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises certificate under the
Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.

If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure
that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary.
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

I, Jo Belton,(for and behalf of the Chief Constable, South Yorkshire police)
( (Insert name of applicant)

apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 / apply for the review of a club

premises certificate under section 87 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in
Part 1 below (delete as applicable)

Part 1 — Premises or club premises details

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description
Hepworth Drive Off Licence Store (known as Comrades Convenience Store)

22 Hepworth Drive, Aston

Post town Post code (if known)

SHEFFIELD S26 2BG

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known)

Hepworth Drive Off Licence Store Limited Company
(sole Company Director is Thomas MANI PALATHU PARAMBIL)

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known)

P0932

Part 2 - Applicant details

[ am
Please tick v* yes

1) an individual, body or business which is not responsible

authority (please read guidance note 1, and complete (A)
or (B) below)

2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below) v

3) a member of the club to which this application relates
(please complete (A) below)




Page 28
APPENDIX 3

(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable)
Please tick v yes

Mr Mrs Miss Ms Other title
(for example, Rev)

Surname First names

Please tick v" yes
I am 18 years old or over

Current postal
address if
different from
premises address

Post town | | Post Code

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address
(optional)

(B) DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT

Name and address

Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address (optional)

(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT

Name and address

Chief Constable of South Yorkshire Police

c/o Jo Belton, Rotherham Police Licensing Officer
Licencing Dept

Main Street, Rotherham S60 1QY

Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address (optional)
Rotherham liciencing@southyorks.pnn.police.uk

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s)
Please tick one or more boxes v’

1) the prevention of crime and disorder v
2) public safety

3) the prevention of public nuisance

4) the protection of children from harm v




Page 29
APPENDIX 3

Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note 2)

This review is brought on due to the failure of the licence holder to promote the
following licensing objectives:

o The prevention of crime and disorder; and
o The protection of children from harm

The premises first came to the attention of the South Yorkshire Police in
October 2021 when it failed a test purchase.

Allegations that underage sales of alcohol were continuing at the premises led to a
second test purchase being conducted on the 2nd March 2022. On this occasion the
test was passed, and the sale refused.

On the 6th April 2022 the Police received intelligence from a concerned parent, who
reported that their 13 year old daughter purchased alcohol at the premises.

The premise was retested on the 23rd August 2022 and again on the 13th November
2023 and passed both times.

However, on the 20" November 2024 the premise failed a test purchase and sold
alcohol to a volunteer cadet

The premises also failed the next test purchase which was carried out on the 19th
March 2025.

Following the two most recent failed test purchases, and In accordance with the good
practice set out in the statutory guidance, issued under section 182 of the Licensing
Act 2003, every effort has been made to work with the sole Director of the Company
that holds the Licence Mr Thomas MANI PALATHU PARAMBI.

On 31t March 2025 an action plan was hand delivered to the premises by the
Council’s Licensing Officer. Each management control set out in the action plan was
discussed with Mr MANI PALATHU PARAMBI in person.

Mr MANI PALATHU PARAMBI was also told to expect further test purchase.

Further information to support Mr MANI PALATHU PARAMBI to achieve compliance
with the measures set out in the action plan was posted to him on the 4" April 2025.

On the13th May 2025 the premise was retested and failed again. This was the third
failure in a 6 month period.

Following the lates failed test purchase the Police Licensing Officer visited the
premises on the 21st May 2025 and met with Mr MANI PALATHU PARAMBI and the
premises Designated Premises Supervisor, Mr SREEKUMAR VARAKIL
JANARDANAN.

The Police Licensing Officer could clearly see that no steps had been taken to put in
place the improved management controls set out in the action plan, which was still in
an envelope it had been delivered in.




Page 30
APPENDIX 3

The Licence holder has proved unwilling to being about required improvements and
failed promote the Licensing objectives of preventing crime and disorder and
protecting children from harm.

Given this the Chief Constable of South Yorkshire Police e is seeking a review of the
Premises Licence, with the recommendation that the Premises Licence is REVOKED.




Page 31
APPENDIX 3

Please provide as much information as possible to support the application (please read guidance note 3)




Page 32

Please tick v yes
Have you made an application for review relating to the
premises before No
If yes please state the date of that application Day Month Year

If you have made representations before relating to the premises please state what they were and
when you made them

N/A

Please tick v yes

e [ have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible authorities v
and the premises licence holder or club holding the club premises certificate,
as appropriate

e [ understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my v
application will be rejected

IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE
A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE
WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION
TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.

Part 3 — Signatures (please read guidance note 4)

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (please read
guidance note 5). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity.

Signature

Jd Belton
On behalf of the Chief Constable of South Yorkshire Police

Date
30t May 2025

Capacity Rotherham Police Licensing Officer

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence
associated with this application (please read guidance note 6)

Jo Belton, Rotherham Police Licensing Officer
Licencing Dept

Main Street
Post town Post Code
Rotherham S60 1QY

Telephone number (if any)

If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-mail address
(optional)




Page 33
APPENDIX 3

Notes for Guidance

1.

A responsible authority includes the local police, fire and rescue authority and other
statutory bodies which exercise specific functions in the local area.

The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives.

Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems which are
included in the grounds for review if available.

The application form must be signed.

An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided
that they have actual authority to do so.

This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application.



Page 34

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 35
Appendix 4

Representations in Support of the Review Application

1. Public Health

From: Rachel-PH Copley <Rachel-ph.Copley@rotherham.gov.uk>

Sent: 04 June 2025 13:45

To: Diane Kraus <Diane.Kraus@rotherham.gov.uk>; Licensing <Licensing@rotherham.gov.uk>
Subject: FW: Application to Review Premises Licence - HEPWORTH DRIVE OFF LICENCE (known as
Comrades Convenience Store), 22 HEPWORTH DRIVE, ASTON, SHEFFIELD S26 2BG

Public Health have reviewed the information supplied by South Yorkshire
Police and agree that the license for this premise should be revoked.
I have attached the scorecard of our public health related evidence backing
up the objective ‘protecting children from harm’:
e This area has a higher than local authority average for looked after
children
¢ This area has a higher than local authority average for Children not in
employment, education or training (NEET %)
e This area has a higher than local authority average for Antisocial
Behaviour

Failure of multiple test purchases shows a disregard for the protection of
children from harm, and this is particularly concerning in an area with high
levels of vulnerable children and young people. Therefore, this premise
should not have an alcohol license.

Rachel Copley

Public Health Practitioner

Adult Care, Housing and Public Health Directorate
Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council

Phone : 01709 222103 | ext. 12103
Visit our website: https://www.rotherham.gov.uk



https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.rotherham.gov.uk%2F&data=05%7C02%7CDiane.Kraus%40rotherham.gov.uk%7Cb0c4df69f4f44085b89b08dda365ad65%7C46fbe6fd78ae47699c1dbcea97378af6%7C0%7C0%7C638846379992489607%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=JQ%2BrW6JVN%2B4wvq8vgHzS1VG0TzEAmPLymO5F0OJk154%3D&reserved=0

Page 36
Appendix 4

yinos fapuerg _._m yinog A3|sEyas
yuop) A3|s12IA

UDLSTYAN

auseaq] uodn YRy

Yoruny g

spaqoy umooy % YGiagly)
fasay =dioy)

YInos uoquIms

YUON UoIuImG

SN, 77 1SBUMO]|EMS
(woouga1ebiocop] yinog weylaupoy
(s, uuy 35 “=1ebyap, ‘MoyueD) [EQUaD) Weylapoy
YINoS YSIEWMEY

1SEM, ULIGH YSIELUMEY

15EF YLD YSIEWMEY

YHON f3|wesg 17 prayusAey
m1efperg 1 ySnougsepy

fge|laH %3 153 Souew

1563 Aquiew

weydecuy ) 13 uoybneq

IIYUEH 78 3DIMPO] "Uclanny

B WpIorRUBgLULY

oIS gLITY

adiopbuluay

ybnosogsesun

BUS(] 1563 7§ POOMITE]
adiopbuluay 1583

uoyfuruuig

fAa|ianEpy 79 UDISU] SUITIED
JIIoMSULIE

=
=]

-

-

.

B
=

5
[~

n
=

]
=]

ey AEEHOR FSESSI0 AN LYY

sucEnpy uabiswy spogg

Apmuap sasiumsd pesua o

Asuap sasiwsud peousty yiog o ug

oD yoeds joyoopy joy saposidl vosswpy

SEEIGUITY (LY 53) SIposidy LoEupy

% ¢-5 sepeif usanoe jou sidng

unsiag iy by acusog, pabbey oyoony

2005 §LOT OW

SINC) [0 S0 NG LY (PSR- [OYa

wna) gsy

91-0 pafiy uaipD

URIPID SYR pRgoaT

L)
-

uoyE Py 153p 79 uolduwelg
uoasy (@

SNESPOOA, 77 U0ISUY
SWEN WS

% 13N

-
=]

moT 85°01- 1Z uo3sy

3S1y paulgwo) 21025 paulqwo) Hjuey SWEeN YOSIN

gny pInQq umopiealg al00S YOS - eleq

woysayloy
[




Page 37
Appendix 4

_F{_nt h ulr ham

Scorecard

A" Tomibired Risk Soond P besn caloslitd lor sach ME0 rom i combination of weighled indizaten

uiriid e 204 WSO s ancifibi e o vl iyt e v b o B, the il bl
g W i, selithen rank frompared to all Rothean WEROW) and Z-Scone for aadh indicator.
MSOMA Name Rank Scane Combined Risk
Althvausgh i MSCUA rriy e Pk ik s, i ches nod i e WSO B high it in genanl, only
Aston 21 -10.58 Low T it gl rhik ralthog 1 tha Rcribsrtum swerigs. 7 seon indicae how ler e indicuior didaies rom
Th average o soon -0l 0 b T means iarga, soosel of 3 and highar jor <3 and ke indkats whira @
wirh it ot “Wagtriee] Y et e il Hd b b, s th i hesad 7-Secwirs
incrois Rotharham am dividid inte Cuuartiss.
ndicrior
Ada Eplsades for Indicaser valos ag-bed Vakse Inclicaicr Rank oo
Alcohol Attributable 10760 Low 21 -037
Condithons (Marrow)

Irefhcator Yebue Weightee kst radicator Rarsk T

Admission Eplsades for
Alcohal Spedfic Conditiens 13.88 Low 21 -0z
o [T Wasighbed Vst rdicasor Rank Tocome

Alcoholic Liver Dissase
Mhortality Rats 0.00 Very Low 20 -DET
indicnee Indicaser valow Wb Vaks [m——— 2 o

Alcobes |-related Amsbulancs

Call Guts 203 High 12 -G

indicnee Indicaser valow Wb Vaks [m——— 2 o
Stroke Emergency

Admissions 2820 Very Low 29 -087
indiceics Indicator el Wt takss Indicaor fiank 2 feore
IMD 2019 Score 26.75 Medium 16 -0.23
indiceics Indicator el Wt takss Indicaor fiank 2 feore
Off licensed premises dersity 0.68 Low 26 -0.59
ndicies Indicator el Wt takss Indicaor fiank 2 feore

On or both licenced prem|ses
P 102 Low 2z 0.48

indictor Indicasr vils vimgtted Vakie Indicator Hank I 5core
Children Aged 0-16 21.3% Hiigh 12 028

[ Indicaser Valow Wt ek Indicater Rank ¥ Senrm
Looked after children 957 High k-] 030

- el Vi Wightan] ke [P—— F T—
NEET % 5.1% High 9 0.69
ndcunse [ S—— Wit kst [ET—— Tscm

Puplls not ackiming grades 39.4% Low 2 067
- el Vi Wightan] ke [P—— F T—

ASB Count 142 High 12 0.06
Iecdicatar Waightsd e irclicaor ank ¥ eora

Alcohol Flagged Vialence Against the
B Low 24 -057




Page 38
Appendix 4

2. Rotherham Safeguarding Children Partnership

From: Lee Durrant <Lee.Durrant@rotherham.gov.uk>

Sent: 27 June 2025 11:14

To: Diane Kraus <Diane.Kraus@rotherham.gov.uk>

Cc: Alan Pogorzelec <Alan.Pogorzelec@rotherham.gov.uk>

Subject: RE: Application to Review Premises Licence - HEPWORTH DRIVE OFF LICENCE (known as
Comrades Convenience Store), 22 HEPWORTH DRIVE, ASTON, SHEFFIELD S26 2BG

| would support the position that the licence is revoked due to repeated
failed test purchases and no evidence of standards improving. The licensee’s
behaviour as evidenced is undermining the licensing objective of protecting
children from harm.

Lee Durrant

Service and Business Manager - Rotherham Safeguarding Children Partnership
Safeguarding, Quality and Learning

Children and Young People Service

Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council

1st Floor,

Riverside House, Main Street

Rotherham

S60 1AE

01709 334516


mailto:Lee.Durrant@rotherham.gov.uk
mailto:Diane.Kraus@rotherham.gov.uk
mailto:Alan.Pogorzelec@rotherham.gov.uk

Page 39
Appendix 4

3. Licensing Authority

Regeneration & Environment Hﬂtherham [
Community Safety and Street Scene Metropolitan l
Licensing Service Borough Council

Riverside House, Main Street. Rotharham, S80 14E

Cirect Line: (01708) 254855
Email: alan. pgorzeleci@rotharham. gov.uk

My Reference; ARREVIEW PI0EZE ‘four Refenance:
Flease ask for: Alan Pogorzslec Date:30" June 2025

Mrs Dians Kraus
Principal Licensang Cfficer (Policy & Administration)

Dear Mrs Kraus

RE: Licensing Authority Representations - Review Premises Licence (Mo, PO33Z)
HEPWCORTH DRIVE CGFF LICENCE {known as Comrades Convenience Store),
22 HEPWORTH DRIVE, ASTON, SHEFFIELD 526 2BG

| arn writing to make representation on behalf of the Licensing Authonty o the applicataon,
made by South Yorkshirz Police, for the review of the Premises Licence (Mo, POS3E) issued
in respect of the above mentioned premises.

The Licensing Authority considers that the Licence holder, Hepworth Orive Off Licence Sdors
Lirrited, of which Mr Thomas KMANI PALATHU PARAMBIL i= the sale Dirsctar, has failed to
pramoie the Beensing objectwss of preventing crime and disorder and protecting children
from harm

Cn 31st March 2025 an action plan was hand delivered to the premisss by the Council's
Lizensing Enforcemant Cfficers. This plan, a copy of which is attached a= Annex & to this
k=tter, sets aut the steps needed to be put in place fo bing about improvement and prevent
further failed iest purchases.

Cfficers met directly vith Mr Mani Palathu Parambil and went through the Action Flan with
ham, explaiming in detsd what steps needsd to be taken; and that he needsd to vary the .
Lizence in arder to make tha recommended managemsant controds a condifion of the Licence.

Following this visit, on 47 April 2025, an email was sent to Mr Mani Palathu Parambil,
prawiding hirn with supporting documentation fo enable compliance with the Action Plan

Despite this assistance Mr WMani Palathe Parambl choss not to take any action, resulfing in
the third failed test purchase.

The Licensing Autharity is satisfied that the Licence holder is unable, or unwalling, fo put in
place and adhere too, the messures necessary fo promoie the licencing cbjeciives of
praventing crime and disorder and proteciing children from harmm

The Lic=nsing Autharity supposis the recommendation made by South Yaorkshire Police that
the Licence is revoked.

Yours sincerely |

Alan Pogorzelec
Licensing Managsr



Page 40
Appendix 4

Annex A
ACTION PLAN

1. Putin place with immediate effect the management controls detailed below.
2. Make a minor variation application so as to add the management
control as conditions to the Licence:

a) Adopt a Challenge 25 Policy. The Policy shall require that any person who appears to
be under the age of 25 must provide id prior to being served alcohol.

i. Acceptable forms of ID are:

ii. apassport;

iii. a UK photo driving licence; or

iv. a military ID card.

b) Record all refusals made under the Challenge 25 Policy. Refusals/Challenges made
must be logged in a bound book. This log must show:

i. date of refusal/challenge made;

ii. member of staff who made the refusal; and

iii. if refused, whether fake ID was seized.

c) DPS to check the Challenge 25 refusal log at least once a week, and sign and date
each check.
d) The Challenge 25 log shall be kept on the premises and shall be available for

inspection upon request of the Police or an authorised officer of the Licensing Authority.

e) Signs shall be displayed inside the premises that advertise that the premises
operates “Challenge 25”.

f) A bound incident book shall be maintained, in which the following shall be recorded:
i. Allincidents of crime and disorder occurring at the premises; and
ii. Details of when the Police are called.

g) The incident book shall be kept on the premises and shall be available for inspection
upon request by the Police or an authorised officer of the Licensing Authority.

h) DPS to check the incident book at least once a
week, and sign and date each check.

i) The A CCTV system installed at the premises, shall:
i. be maintained fully at all times;
ii. make and retain clear images; and
iii. show an accurate date and time that the images were made.
iv. be accessible to staff, Police or an authorised officer of the Licensing Authority.

i) All CCTV images shall be retained for a period of not less than 31 days.



Page 41
Appendix 4

k) CCTV images shall be immediately made available for review upon request of the
Police or an authorised officer of the Licensing Authority.

) A copy of a CCTV image shall be provided within 24 hours upon request of the Police
or an authorised officer of the Licensing Authority.

m) A record of each member of staff who is authorised to sell alcohol shall be kept on
the premises. This record shall include the staff members full name, address, and date of
birth.

n) All staff shall receive training on induction and year thereafter, on:
i. operation of 'Challenge 25';
ii. types of acceptable ID;
iii. method of recording refusals;
iv. refusing sales of alcohol to persons who appear to be drunk;
V. preventing proxy sales;

vi. how to review the CCTV system if requested.
0) Staff training shall be recorded, records shall be kept of the premises and shall, on

request, be made available for inspection by the Police or an authorised officer of the
Licensing Authority



Page 42

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 43
Appendix 5

From: Jo Belton <Jo.Belton@southyorkshire.police.uk>
Sent: 25 July 2025 17:18

To: Diane Kraus <Diane.Kraus@rotherham.gov.uk>
Subject: Hepworth Drive

Dear Mr Kraus

The following additional evidence is submitted in support of the application was
made by the Chief Constable of South Yorkshire Police for the review of the
Premises Licence issued to Hepworth Drive Off Licence Store Limited in respect

of Hepworth Drive Off Licence Store (22 Hepworth Drive, Aston, Sheffield S26 2BG.

On Tuesday 22" July2025 at approximately 10:50 hours | visited the premises to
carry out a Licence compliance inspection. At the time of this inspection there was a
single member of staff working, Ms Lauren Gale. | found the shop to be operating in
non-compliance with the following conditions:

Condition 2 of Annex 2 of the Licence
Staff shall log all refusals and challenges made under the Challenge 25 Policy
in a bound book. This log must show:
a. the date the refusal/challenge is made;
b. the name of the member of staff who made the refusal/challenge;
and
c. if refused, whether fake ID was seized

Non-compliance — refusals were being logged but not challenges

Condition 3 of Annex 2 of the Licence
The DPS shall check the Challenge 25 log at least once a week, and sign and
date each check

Non-compliance — no DPS checks recorded in Challenge 25 log

Condition 8 of Annex 2 of the Licence
The DPS shall check the incident book at least once a week, and sign and
date each check

Non-compliance — no DPS checks recorded in incident book

Conditions 9. of Annex 2 of the Licence
The CCTV system installed at the premises shall:
a. be maintained fully at all times;
b. make and retain clear images; and
c. show an accurate date and time that the images were made.



mailto:Jo.Belton@southyorkshire.police.uk
mailto:Diane.Kraus@rotherham.gov.uk

Page 44
Appendix 5
Non-Compliance of condition 9a — Staff member unable to access the
CCTV at the time of the visit. Told this was due to a faulty mouse and

that DPS was aware of the fault

As not able to access system, unable to ascertain compliance with
conditions 9b and 9c

Conditions 10 of Annex 2 of the Licence
All CCTV images shall be retained for a period of not less than 31 days.

Unable to ascertain compliance with condition 10

Conditions 11 of Annex 2 of the Licence
CCTV images shall be immediately made available for review upon request of
the Police or an authorised officer of the Licensing Authority.

Non-compliance — unbale to review CCTV images

Conditions 13 of Annex 2 of the Licence

A record of each member of staff who is authorised to sell alcohol shall be
kept on the premises. This record shall include the staff members full name,
address, and date of birth.

Non-compliance — no record available.

Conditions 14 of Annex 2 of the Licence
All staff shall receive training on induction, and year thereafter, on:
a. operation of '‘Challenge 25';
b. types of acceptable ID;
c. method of recording refusals;
d. refusing sales of alcohol to persons who appear to be drunk;
e. preventing proxy sales; and
f. how to review the CCTV system if requested.

Unable to ascertain compliance with condition 14 — member of staff on
duty said she had been trained but no record of this.

Conditions 15 of Annex 2 of the Licence

Staff training shall be recorded, and this record shall be kept of the premises
and shall, on request, be made available for inspection by the Police or an
authorised officer of the Licensing Authority.

Non-compliance — no record available (shown a book that had some
training questions in, but no signed training record maintained)

The above is evidence demonstrates that the Licence holder is unwilling, or unable,
to operate the premises in a manner that promotes the licensing objectives and
supports the recommendation of the Chief Constable of South Yorkshire Police that
the Premises Licence is revoked.



Page 45
Appendix 5

| would also mention that at the time of my visit the exterior of the shop was like a
building site, creating a hazard for people entering and exiting the shop.

Yours sincerely
Jo Belton
Rotherham Licensing Enforcement Officer

South Yorkshire Police

Licensing Department

Rotherham District

Riverside House

Main Street

S60 1AE
Jo.belton@southyorks.police.co.uk
T: 01709 832154 (Int: 722154)
M: 07919 300353

southyorks.police.uk



mailto:Jo.belton@southyorks.police.co.uk
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fsouthyorks.police.uk%2F&data=05%7C02%7Cdiane.kraus%40rotherham.gov.uk%7C3d8ab61857bc4a8c4e8d08ddcb96e4e1%7C46fbe6fd78ae47699c1dbcea97378af6%7C0%7C0%7C638890571166021241%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=KRtT3JZelH%2BKC6Y6%2Ff0HCRsQ%2FC3kHaIPbjCfbxQD9us%3D&reserved=0

Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Consideration of an application (made in accordance with s.51 of the Licensing Act 2003) for the review of the Premises Licence issued to Hepworth Drive Off Licence Store Limited, Hepworth Drive Off Licence Store,  22 Hepworth Drive, Aston, Sheffield S26 2BG
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2_
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5_




